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IN IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURTTHE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIADISTRICT OF GEORGIA 

SA SAVANNAH DIVISIONV ANNAH DIVISION 

UNITED UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,STATES OF AMERICA, ) 
SA SAVANNAH-CHATHAM COUNTYV ANNAH-CHA THAM COUNTY ) 
F FAIR HOUSING COUNCIL, INC.,AIR HOUSING COUNCIL, INC., ) 
JERALD JERALD WILLIAMS, AMANDAWILLIAMS, AMANDA ) 
WILLIAMS, WILLIAMS, and TERESA ODUMSand TERESA ODUMS ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs, ) 

) 
v. V. ) 

) 
DARWIN DARWIN KENNETH MORGAN andKENNETH MORGAN; and ) 
D.K. D.K. MORGAN CONSOLIDATED LLCMORGAN CONSOLIDATED LLC ) 

) 
Defendants. Defendants. ) 

) 

CIVIL CIVIL ACTION NO. 4:07-cv-125ACTION NO. 4:07-cv-125 

CONSENT CONSENT DECREEDECREE 

I. I. INTRODUCTIONINTRODUCTION 

1. 1. This This action was filed by the Savannah-Chatham County Fair Housing Council, Inc.,action was filed by the Savannah-Chatham County Fair Housing Council, Inc., 

Jerald Jerald Williams, Amanda Williams, and Teresa Odums (collectively "private Plaintiffs")Williams, Amanda Williams, and Teresa Odums (collectively "private Plaintiffs") 

against against Defendants Darwin K. Morgan dlb/a Morgan Mobile Park and D.K. MorganDefendants Darwin K. Morgan d/b/a Morgan Mobile Park and D.K. Morgan 

Consolidated, Consolidated, LLC d!b/a Morgan Mobile Park (collectively "Defendants") allegingLLC d/b/a Morgan Mobile Park (collectively "Defendants") alleging 

violations violations of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.c. § 3601 3601 et et 5M. ("FHA"). and Section 1982seq. ("FHA"), and Section 1982 

of of the Civil Rights Act of 1866, 42 U.S.C. § 1982. Specifically, the private Plaintiffsthe Civil Rights Act of 1866,42 U.S.C. § 1982. Specifically, the private Plaintiffs 

allege allege that Defendants violated federal law by engaging in a pattern or practice ofthat Defendants violated federal law by engaging in a pattern or practice of 

discrimination discrimination on the basis of race, color and sex in connection with the ownership oron the basis of race, color and sex in connection with the ownership or 

operation operation of dwellings at mobile home parks in Bloomingdale, Georgia (hereinafterof dwellings at mobile home parks in Bloomingdale, Georgia (hereinafter 

"Morgan "Morgan Mobile Home Parks").Mobile Home Parks"). 
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2. 2. A A separate action was filed by the United States to enforce the provisions of the Fairseparate action was filed by the United States to enforce the provisions of the Fair 

Housing Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq. The United States alleges that Defendants haveAct, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq. The United States alleges that Defendants have 

engaged engaged in discrimination on the basis of race or color in violation of 42 U.S.C.in discrimination on the basis of race or color in violation of 42 U.S.C. 

§§ § 3604(a), (c, and (d), and on the basis of sex, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a) and3604(a), (c), and (d), and on the basis of sex, in violation of 42 U.S.C. §§ 3604(a) and 

(b) (b) and 3617. The United States alleges that Defendants' conduct constitutes a pattern orand 3617. The United States alleges that Defendants' conduct constitutes a pattern or 

practice of discrimination on the basis of race or color and sex or a denial of rights to apractice of discrimination on the basis of race or color and sex or a denial of rights to a 

group group of persons that raises an issue of general public importance, in violation of 42of persons that raises an issue of general public importance, in violation of 42 

U.S.C. U.S.C. § 3614, in the rental of dwelling units at Morgan Mobile Home Parks.§ 3614, in the rental of dwelling units at Morgan Mobile Home Parks. 

3. 3. The The United States further alleges that Defendant D.K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC isUnited States further alleges that Defendant D,K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC is 

liable liable for the discriminatory conduct of its agent and manager, Defendant Darwin K.for the discriminatory conduct of its agent and manager, Defendant Darwin K. 

Morgan, Morgan, because the conduct occurred within the scope of his employment and/orbecause the conduct occurred within the scope of his employment and/or 

agency. agency.

4. 4. Specifically, Specifically, the United States alleges that Defendants have engaged in housing practicesthe United States alleges that Defendants have engaged in housing practices 

that that discriminate on the basis of race or color and sex, including:discriminate on the basis of race or color and sex, including: 

a. a. Denying Denying the availability of mobile homes and/or mobile home lots tothe availability of mobile homes and/or mobile home lots to 

African-American African-American persons while at the same time telling white persons aboutpersons while at the same time telling white persons about 

available available mobile homes and/or mobile home lots;mobile homes andlor mobile home lots; 

b.b. Refusing Refusing to negotiate with African-American prospective tenants for rental;to negotiate with African-American prospective tenants for rental; 

c. C. Making Making statements with respect to the rental of mobile homes and/or mobilestatements with respect to the rental of mobile homes and/or mobile 

home home lots at Morgan Mobile Home Parks indicating a preference, a limitation, orlots at Morgan Mobile Home Parks indicating a preference, a limitation, or 

discrimination discrimination based on race or color;based on race or color; 
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d. d. Discouraging Discouraging African-American persons from applying for a mobile home and/orAfrican-American persons from applying for a mobile home and/or 

mobile mobile home lot while encouraging white persons to apply; andhome lot while encouraging white persons to apply; and 

e. Subjecting Subjecting female tenants at Morgan Mobile Home Parks to discrimination on thefemale tenants at Morgan Mobile Home Parks to discrimination on the 

basis basis of sex, including severe, pervasive, and unwelcome sexual harassment.of sex, including severe, pervasive, and unwelcome sexual harassment. 

Such Such conduct is alleged to have included, but is not limited to, unwanted verbalconduct is alleged to have included, but is not limited to, unwanted verbal 

sexual sexual advances; unwanted sexual touching; public masturbation; granting andadvances; unwanted sexual touching; public masturbation; granting and 

denying denying tangible housing benefits based on sex; and taking adverse action againsttangible housing benefits based on sex; and taking adverse action against 

female female tenants when they refused or objected to his sexual advances.tenants when they refused or objected to his sexual advances. 

5. 5. The The United States alleges that through this conduct Defendants have:United States alleges that through this conduct Defendants have: 

a. a. Discriminated Discriminated by refusing to rent, negotiate for the rental of, or by otherwiseby refusing to rent, negotiate for the rental of, or by otherwise 

making making unavailable or denying dwellings to persons because of race or color andunavailable or denying dwellings to persons because of race or color and 

sex, sex, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a);in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a); 

b.b. Discriminated Discriminated against persons in the terms, conditions, or privileges of rental, oragainst persons in the terms, conditions, or privileges of rental, or 

in in the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, because of sex, inthe provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, because of sex, in 

violation violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(b);of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(b); 

c. C. Discriminated Discriminated by making, or causing to be made, statements with respect to theby making, or causing to be made, statements with respect to the 

rental rental of a dwelling that indicate a preference, a limitation, or discriminationof a dwelling that indicate a preference, a limitation, or discrimination 

based on race or color, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § based on race or color, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c); 3604(c);

d. I Discriminated Discriminated by representing to persons because of race or color that dwellingsby representing to persons because of race or color that dwellings 

are are not available for rental when such dwellings are in fact so available, innot available for rental when such dwellings are in fact so available, in 

violation violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3604(d); andof 42 U.S.C. § 3604(d); and 
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e. e. Coerced, intimidated, threatened, or interfered with persons in the exercise orCoerced, intimidated, threatened, or interfered with persons in the exercise or 

enjoyment enjoyment of, or on account of their having exercised or enjoyed, their rightsof, or on account of their having exercised or enjoyed, their rights 

under Section 804 of the Fair Housing Act, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 3617.under Section 804 of the Fair Housing Act, in violation of 42 U.S.c. § 3617. 

6. 6. Defendants Defendants dispute and deny the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through dispute and deny the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 5, 5.

7. 7. On On February 4, 2009, the Court consolidated the actions by the private Plaintiffs and theFebruary 4,2009, the Court consolidated the actions by the private Plaintiffs and the 

United United States.States. 

8. 8. Mobile Mobile homes and mobile home lots are "dwellings" within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. §homes and mobile home lots are "dwellings" within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. § 

3602(b). 3602(b).

9. 9. The The parties agree that this Court has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 1345 and 42parties agree that this Court has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.c. §§ 1331, 1345 and 42 

U.S.C. U.S.C. § 3614(a).§ 3614(a). 

10. 10. The The United States, private Plaintiffs and Defendants have agreed that to avoid protractedUnited States, private Plaintiffs and Defendants have agreed that to avoid protracted 

and and costly litigation, this controversy should be resolved without a trial. Therefore, thecostly litigation, this controversy should be resolved without a trial. Therefore, the 

parties parties consent to the entry of this Consent Decree. It is understood and agreed that thisconsent to the entry of this Consent Decree. It is understood and agreed that this 

Consent Consent Decree is the compromise of disputed claims and is not to be construed as anDecree is the compromise of disputed claims and is not to be construed as an 

admission admission of liability.of liability. 

ACCORDINGL ACCORDINGLY, It is hereby ADJUDGED, ORDERED and DECREED:Y, It is hereby ADJUDGED, ORDERED and DECREED: 

II. II. GENERAL INJUNCTIONGENERAL INJUNCTION 

11. 11. Defendants, Defendants, their officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns, and all othertheir officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns, and all other 

persons in active concert or participation with them, are enjoined, with respect to thepersons in active concert or participation with them, are enjoined, with respect to the 

rental rental of dwellings, from:of dwellings, from: 

a. a. Refusing Refusing to rent a dwelling unit, refusing or failing to provide or offerto rent a dwelling unit, refusing or failing to provide or offer 

information information about a dwelling unit, or otherwise making unavailable or denying aabout a dwelling unit, or otherwise making unavailable or denying a 
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dwelling dwelling unit to any person because of race, color or sex;unit to any person because of race, color or sex; 

b.b. Discriminating Discriminating against any person in the terms, conditions or privileges of rentingagainst any person in the terms, conditions or privileges of renting 

a a dwelling unit, or in the provision of services or facilities in connectiondwelling unit, or in the provision of services or facilities in connection 

therewith, because of race, color or sex;therewith, because of race, color or sex; 

c. C. Making, Making, printing, publishing, or causing to be made, printed, or published anyprinting, publishing, or causing to be made, printed, or published any 

notice, notice, statement or advertisement with respect to the rental of a dwelling unit thatstatement or advertisement with respect to the rental of a dwelling unit that 

states states anany y preference, limitation or discrimination based on race, color or sex;preference, limitation or discrimination based on race, color or sex; 

d. d. Misrepresenting Misrepresenting to any person, because of race, color or sex, that a dwelling isto any person, because of race, color or sex, that a dwelling is 

not not available for rental when a dwelling is available; oravailable for rental when a dwelling is available; or 

e. e. Coercing, Coercing, intimidating, threatening or interfering with any person in the exerciseintimidating, threatening or interfering with any person in the exercise 

or or enjoyment of, or on account of having exercised or enjoyed, or on account ofenjoyment of, or on account of having exercised or enjoyed, or on account of 

having aided and encouraged any other person in the exercise or enjoyment of,having aided and encouraged any other person in the exercise or enjoyment of, 

any any right granted by the Fair Housing Act.right granted by the Fair Housing Act. 

III. Ill. INDEPENDENT INDEPENDENT MANAGER(S)MANAGER(S) 

12. 12. Should Should either Defendant continue to have any direct or indirect ownership, management,either Defendant continue to have any direct or indirect ownership, management, 

or or other financial interest in Morgan Mobile Home Parks and/or any residential rentalother financial interest in Morgan Mobile Home Parks and/or any residential rental 

properties (collectively "Subject Properties") after thirty (30) days of the entry of theproperties (collectively "Subject Properties") after thirty (30) days of the entry of the 

Consent Consent Decree or at any time while this Decree is in effect, then they shall retain orDecree or at any time while this Decree is in effect, then they shall retain or 

otherwise otherwise enter into an agreement with an individual or individuals, approved in advanceenter into an agreement with an individual or individuals, approved in advance 

by the United States (hereinafter "Manager(s)"), to manage the rental of the Subjectby the United States (hereinafter "Manager(s)"), to manage the rental of the Subject 

Properties. Properties. The Manager(s) shall be familiar with the requirements of the Fair HousingThe Manager(s) shall be familiar with the requirements of the Fair Housing 

Act. Act.
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13. 13. Within Within sixty (60) days after entry of this Consent Decree, Defendants shall submit thesixty (60) days after entry of this Consent Decree, Defendants shall submit the 

name(s) name(s) of proposed Managers to the United States for approval. The United States willof proposed Managers to the United States for approval. The United States will 

indicate indicate its approval or disapproval in writing within thirty (30) days of receiving theits approval or disapproval in writing within thirty (30) days of receiving the 

name(s) name(s) from Defendants. If the United States disapproves Defendants' proposedfrom Defendants. If the United States disapproves Defendants' proposed 

Managers, Managers, the United States shall state this disapproval in writing, along with the reasonsthe United States shall state this disapproval in writing, along with the reasons 

for for such disapproval. Defendants shall then have fourteen (14) days to submit additionalsuch disapproval. Defendants shall then have fourteen (14) days to submit additional 

proposed Managers for approval. The United States shall then have fourteen (14) days toproposed Managers for approval. The United States shall then have fourteen (14) days to 

indicate indicate approval or disapproval in writing. If the United States then disapprovesapproval or disapproval in writing. If the United States then disapproves 

Defendants' Defendants' proposed Manager(s), and Defendants believe that approval has beenproposed Manager(s), and Defendants believe that approval has been 

unreasonably unreasonably withheld, Defendants shall have the right to petition the Court for approval.withheld, Defendants shall have the right to petition the Court for approval. 

14. 14. If If after retaining the independent Manager(s) the Defendants wish to change independentafter retaining the independent Manager( s) the Defendants wish to change independent 

Manager(s), Manager(s), Defendants may do so, provided that any such subsequent Manager(s) mustDefendants may do so, provided that any such subsequent Manager(s) must 

also also be approved in advance by the United States and comply with the requirementsbe approved in advance by the United States and comply with the requirements 

described described in this Consent Decree. Defendants will have fourteen (14) days from the datein this Consent Decree. Defendants will have fourteen (14) days from the date 

they they learn of the previous Manager(s)' departure to propose a new Manager(s) forlearn of the previous Manager(s)' departure to propose a new Manager(s) for 

approval approval to the United States. During that period and the approval process described into the United States. During that period and the approval process described in 

Paragraph Paragraph 13, Defendants may employ an interim independent manager.13, Defendants may employ an interim independent manager. 

15. 15. Only Only the Manager(s) shall be responsible for showing and renting units, supervisingthe Manager(s) shall be responsible for showing and renting units, supervising 

repairs, repairs, setting rents and security deposits, determining whom to rent to and/or evict,setting rents and security deposits, deteffilining whom to rent to and/or evict, 

overseeing overseeing all aspects of the rental process, and engaging in any other managementall aspects of the rental process, and engaging in any other management 

activities. activities.

16. 16. Within Within sixty (60) days of the approval of the Manager(s), Defendants, Manager(s) andsixty (60) days ofthe approval of the Manager(s), Defendants, Manager(s) and 
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any any person involved in showing, renting or managing any dwelling unit, shall undergo in-person involved in showing, renting or managing any dwelling unit, shall undergo in­

person training on the Fair Housing Act at a reasonable location, with specific emphasisperson training on the Fair Housing Act at a reasonable location, with specific emphasis 

on on discrimination on the basis of race or color and sex. The training shall be conducteddiscrimination on the basis of race or color and sex. The training shall be conducted 

by an independent, qualified third party, approved in advance by the United States, andby an independent, qualified third party, approved in advance by the United States, and 

any any expenses associated with this training shall be borne by Defendants. Defendants shallexpenses associated with this training shall be borne by Defendants. Defendants shall 

obtain obtain from the trainer certifications of attendance, executed by each individual whofrom the trainer certifications of attendance, executed by each individual who 

received received the training, confirming their attendance. This confirmation shall include thethe training, confirming their attendance. This confirmation shall include the 

name name of the course, the name of the instructor, the date the course was taken, and theof the course, the name of the instructor, the date the course was taken, and the 

length length of the course and/or time within which the course was completed. At a minimum,of the course and/or time within which the course was completed. At a minimum, 

the the training required shall consist of instruction on the requirements of all applicabletraining required shall consist of instruction on the requirements of all applicable 

federal federal and state housing discrimination laws, with an emphasis of race or colorand state housing discrimination laws, with an emphasis of race or color 

discrimination discrimination and sexual harassment, and a question and answer session for the purposeand sexual harassment, and a question and answer session for the purpose 

of of reviewing the foregoing areas.reviewing the foregoing areas. 

17. 17. The The Manager(s) shall be responsible for:Manager(s) shall be responsible for: 

a. a. Posting Posting a prominent, easily readable "For Rent" or "Vacancy" sign or notice ata prominent, easily readable "For Rent" or "Vacancy" sign or notice at 

the the entrance to the mobile home park, which shall include the slogan "Equalentrance to the mobile home park, which shall include the slogan "Equal 

Housing Housing Opportunity" and/or the fair housing logo whenever any dwelling unit atOpportunity" and/or the fair housing logo whenever any dwelling unit at 

the Subject Properties is available to rent;the Subject Properties is available to rent; 

b.b. Posting Posting and prominently displaying a full-size HUD fair housing poster (HUDand prominently displaying a full-size HUD fair housing poster (HUD 

Form Form 928.1) in a conspicuous location, such as the mailbox kiosk or entrance at928.1) in a conspicuous location, such as the mailbox kiosk or entrance at 

each each of the Subject Properties, and distributing an 8" x 11" copy of this poster toof the Subject Properties, and distributing an 8" x 11" copy of this poster to 

all all new and prospective tenants;new and prospective tenants; 
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C.c. Requiring that all advertising conducted in newspapers, telephone directories,Requiring that all advertising conducted in newspapers, telephone directories, 

radio, television or other media, and all billboards, signs (including at theradio, television or other media, and all billboards, signs (including at the 

entrance to the property), pamphlets, brochures and other promotional literature,entrance to the property), pamphlets, brochures and other promotional1iterature, 

be in compliance with HUD advertising guidelines, formerly codified at 24 C.F.R.be in compliance with HUD advertising guidelines, formerly codified at 24 C.F.R. 

§ 109 and presently available on the HUD website, www.hud.gov§ 109 and presently available on the HUD website, www.hud.gov; ;

d. Ensuring that all of its employees who will be performing any duties in relation tod. Ensuring that all of its employees who will be performing any duties in relation to 

the Subject Properties are familiar with the requirements of the Fair Housing Act,the Subject Properties are familiar with the requirements of the Fair Housing Act, 

particularly as they pertain to race or color discrimination and sexual harassment;particularly as they pertain to race or color discrimination and sexual harassment; 

C.e. Notifying the United States in the event the Manager(s) obtains any informationNotifying the United States in the event the Manager(s) obtains any information 

indicating that any Defendant is in violation of this Consent Decree or the Fairindicating that any Defendant is in violation of this Consent Decree or the Fair 

Housing Act;Housing Act; 

f.f. Providing to the United States notification and documentation' of the followingProviding to the United States notification and documentation l of the following 

events, events, no later than fifteen no later than fifteen (15) (15) days days after occurrence:after occurrence: 

1. Any change in Defendants' rules or practices regarding theAny change in Defendants' rules or practices regarding the 

Nondiscrimination Nondiscrimination Policy discussed in Section Policy discussed in Section IV, W. below, below, or theor the 

nondiscriminatory nondiscriminatory standards and procedures discussed in Section V.standards and procedures discussed in Section V. 

2. 2. Any Any written or oral complaint against Defendants, or Defendants' agentswritten or oral complaint against Defendants, or Defendants' agents 

or or employees, regarding discrimination in housing. If the complaint isemployees, regarding discrimination in housing. If the complaint is 

1 'All documents or other communications required by this Consent Decree to be sent to counselAll documents or other communications required by this Consent Decree to be sent to counsel 
for for the United States shall be sent by commercial (non-USPS) overnight delivery servicethe United States shall be sent by commercial (non-USPS) overnight delivery service 
addressed addressed as follows: Chief, Housing and Civil Enforcement Section, Civil Rights Division,as follows: Chief, Housing and Civil Enforcement Section, Civil Rights Division, 
United United States Department of Justice, 1800 0 Street N.W., Suite 7002, Washington, D.C. 20006,States Department of Justice, 1800 G Street N.W., Suite 7002, Washington, D.C. 20006, 
Attn: Attn: DJ 175-20-110, or as otherwise directed by the United States. Facsimile transmissionsOJ 175-20-110, or as otherwise directed by the United States. Facsimile transmissions 
shall shall be sent to (202) 514-1116.be sent to (202) 514-1116. 
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written, written, the Manager shall provide a copy of it with the notification. Thethe Manager shall provide a copy of it with the notification. The 

notification notification shall include the full details of the complaint, including theshall include the full details of the complaint, including the 

complainant's complainant's name, address, and telephone number. Defendants shallname, address, and telephone number. Defendants shall 

promptly promptly provide the United States all information it may requestprovide the United States all information it may request 

concerning concerning any such complaint and shall inform the United States withinany such complaint and shall inform the United States within 

fifteen fifteen (15) days of the substance of any resolution of such complaint; and(15) days of the substance of any resolution of such complaint; and 

g. g. Providing Providing any information reasonably related to compliance with this Consentany information reasonably related to compliance with this Consent 

Decree Decree that is reasonably requested by the United States.that is reasonably requested by the United States. 

18. 18. Within Within sixty (60) days of the approval of the Manager(s), and every six (6) monthssixty (60) days ofthe approval of the Manager(s), and every six (6) months 

thereafter thereafter for the duration of this Consent Decree, the Manager(s) shall deliver tofor the duration of this Consent Decree, the Manager(s) shall deliver to 

counsel counsel for the United States a report containing information about Defendants'for the United States a report containing information about Defendants' 

compliance compliance efforts during the preceding reporting period, including but not limited to:efforts during the preceding reporting period, including but not limited to: 

a. a. A list of all lessees at the Subject Properties and their telephone numbers, to theA list of all lessees at the Subject Properties and their telephone numbers, to the 

extent extent Defendants posses them. Defendants shall use their best efforts to secureDefendants posses them. Defendants shall use their best efforts to secure 

working working telephone numbers for all lessees;telephone numbers for all lessees; 

b.b. Notification and documentation of the adoption and implementation of theNotification and documentation of the adoption and implementation of the 

Nondiscrimination Policy referred to in Section IV, below, including copies of allNondiscrimination Policy referred to in Section IV, below, including copies of all 

Employee Employee Acknowledgment forms;Acknowledgment forms; 

c. C. Notification and documentation of the adoption and implementation of theNotification and documentation ofthe adoption and implementation ofthe 

nondiscriminatory nondiscriminatory standards and procedures discussed in Section V, below;standards and procedures discussed in Section V, below; 

d. d. Copies Copies of standard rental applications and rental agreements, pursuant toof standard rental applications and rental agreements, pursuant to 

Paragraph Paragraph 23 of this Consent Decree;23 of this Consent Decree; 
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e. e. Copies Copies of all fair housing training certifications, pursuant to Paragraph 16 of thisof all fair housing training certifications, pursuant to Paragraph 16 of this 

Consent Consent Decree;Decree; 

f. f. Copies Copies of all written rental applications, leases and other information recorded byof all written rental applications, leases and other information recorded by 

any any means related to any inquiries regarding the availability of rental dwellings,means related to any inquiries regarding the availability of rental dwellings, 

maintained maintained pursuant to Section V of this Consent Decree;pursuant to Section V of this Consent Decree; 

g. g. A A list of all residential rental properties in which Defendants or their memberslist of all residential rental properties in which Defendants or their members 

have have an ownership or management interest, in whole or in part, including thean ownership or management interest, in whole or in part, including the 

street street address, the number of rental units at each property, and a description of theaddress, the number of rental units at each property, and a description of the 

interest interest in the property;in the property; 

h. h. Notification of any purchase, inheritance, or acquisition involving Defendants orNotification of any purchase, inheritance, or acquisition involving Defendants or 

any any of their members of any change in ownership or management interest inof their members of any change in ownership or management interest in 

Morgan Morgan Mobile Home Parks; andMobile Home Parks; and 

1. i. Notification of any purchase, inheritance, or acquisition involving Defendants ofNotification of any purchase, inheritance, or acquisition involving Defendants of 

any any ownership or management interest in any residential rental property which isownership or management interest in any residential rental property which is 

used used or intended to be used as a dwelling as defined by 42 U.S.C. § 3602(b), andor intended to be used as a dwelling as defined by 42 U.S.C. § 3602(b), and 

any any sale, transfer, or other disposition of any interest in residential rentalsale, transfer, or other disposition of any interest in residential rental 

properties, including the identity of the purchaser(s) to whom the interest is beingproperties, including the identity of the purchaser(s) to whom the interest is being 

transferred.transferred. 

19. 19. Defendant Defendant Darwin K. Morgan shall refrain from entering the premises of any of theDarwin K. Morgan shall refrain from entering the premises of any of the 

residential residential rental properties except that he may do so, when accompanied by therental properties except that he may do so, when accompanied by the 

Manager(s), Manager(s), if it is necessary for him to inspect the property. However, in exigentif it is necessary for him to inspect the property. However, in exigent 

circumstances circumstances requiring immediate aid or action, Defendant Darwin K. Morgan may enterrequiring immediate aid or action, Defendant Darwin K. Morgan may enter 
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the premises of a residential rental property unaccompanied for the period of thethe premises of a residential rental property unaccompanied for the period of the 

exigency.exigency. 

IV. NONDISCRIMINATION POLICYIV. NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY 

20.20. Defendants must implement, through the Manager(s), the written NondiscriminationDefendants must implement, through the Manager(s), the written Nondiscrimination 

Policy set forth in Appendix A. Within fifteen (15) days after the approval of thePolicy set forth in Appendix A. Within fifteen (15) days after the approval of the 

Manager(s), the Manager(s) must implement the Policy and distribute it to all employeesManager(s), the Manager(s) must implement the Policy and distribute it to all employees 

and agents who have responsibility for showing, renting, or managing any and alland agents who have responsibility for showing, renting, or managing any and all 

dwelling units at the Subject Properties. The Manager(s) shall secure a signed statementdwelling units at the Subject Properties. The Manager(s) shall secure a signed statement 

from each such agent or employee acknowledging that he or she has received and read thefrom each such agent or employee acknowledging that he or she has received and read the 

Consent Decree and the Nondiscrimination Policy, has had the opportunity to haveConsent Decree and the Nondiscrimination Policy, has had the opportunity to have 

questions about the Consent Decree and Nondiscrimination Policy answered, and agreesquestions about the Consent Decree and Nondiscrimination Policy answered, and agrees 

to to abide by the relevant provisions of the Consent Decree and the Policy. This statementabide by the relevant provisions of the Consent Decree and the Policy. This statement 

shall shall be in the form of Appendix B.be in the form of Appendix B. 

V. V. NONDISCRIMINATORY STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES FOR SHOWINGNONDISCRIMINATORY STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES FOR SHOWING 
AVAILABLE AVAILABLE DWELLING UNITS TO PROSPECTIVE TENANTSDWELLING UNITS TO PROSPECTIVE TENANTS 

21. 21. Within Within thirty (30) days from the approval of the Manager(s), Defendants shall developthirty (30) days from the approval of the Manager(s), Defendants shall develop 

and and implement, with respect to the Subject Properties, objective, uniform, non-implement, with respect to the Subject Properties, objective, uniform, non-

discriminatory discriminatory standards and procedures for informing persons about and showingstandards and procedures for informing persons about and showing 

available available dwelling units to prospective tenants, to include a standard rental application,dwelling units to prospective tenants, to include a standard rental application, 

waiting waiting list, and lease. Such standards and procedures shall be submitted to the Unitedlist, and lease. Such standards and procedures shall be submitted to the United 

States States for approval in advance of their implementation and shall be consistent with thefor approval in advance of their implementation and shall be consistent with the 

provisions provisions of this Section. The standards and procedures shall be posted and prominentlyof this Section. The standards and procedures shall be posted and prominently 
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displayed displayed in any office where there is rental activity and/or personal contact within any office where there is rental activity and/or personal contact with 

applicants, applicants, and a copy of these standards and procedures shall be made available uponand a copy of these standards and procedures shall be made available upon 

request request to any applicant for the rental of a dwelling. These standards and procedures mayto any applicant for the rental of a dwelling. These standards and procedures may 

be modified only if written notice is given to counsel for the United States thirty be modified only if written notice is given to counsel for the United States thirty (30) (30) days days

before the proposed modifications are to take effect and the United States makes nobefore the proposed modifications are to take effect and the United States makes no 

objection objection thereto.thereto. 

22. 22. The The nondiscriminatory standards and procedures discussed in Paragraph 21, above, shallnondiscriminatory standards and procedures discussed in Paragraph 21, above, shall 

include include the use of the following documents, which Defendants shall update as newthe use of the following documents, which Defendants shall update as new 

information information becomes available, and retain for the duration of the Consent Decree:becomes available, and retain for the duration ofthe Consent Decree: 

a. a. Rental Rental Applications: Manager(s) and/or their agents/employees shall provide andApplications: Manager(s) andlor their agents/employees shall provide and 

process rental applications on a non-discriminatory basis and shall maintain allprocess rental applications on a non-discriminatory basis and shall maintain all 

rental rental applications, whether deemed complete or incomplete, and anyapplications, whether deemed complete or incomplete, and any 

correspondence correspondence about the availability of dwelling units. The rental applicationabout the availability of dwelling units. The rental application 

must must include the following phrase in boldface type, using letters of equal orinclude the following phrase in boldface type, using letters of equal or 

greater greater size to those of the text in the body of the document:size to those of the text in the body of the document: 

We We are an equal housing opportunity provider. Weare an equal housing opportunity provider. We 
do do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex,not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, 
national national origin, religion, disability or familial statusorigin, religion, disability or familial status 
(having (having children under age 18).children under age 18). 

b.b. Waiting Waiting Lists: Manager(s) and/or their agents/employees shall maintain waitingLists: Manager(s) and/or their agents/employees shall maintain waiting 

lists lists in a non-discriminatory manner and develop uniform standards for selectingin a non-discriminatory manner and develop uniform standards for selecting 

individuals individuals from the list, whether formally or informally maintained.from the list, whether formally or informally maintained. 

c. C. Leases: Leases: Manager(s) and/or their agents/employees shall enter into written leasesManager(s) and/or their agents/employees shall enter into written leases 
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with with prospective tenants in a non-discriminatory manner and develop uniformprospective tenants in a non-discriminatory manner and develop uniform 

standards standards for executing and maintaining the leases. Defendants shall make bestfor executing and maintaining the leases. Defendants shall make best 

efforts efforts to secure an executed lease with each existing tenant.to secure an executed lease with each existing tenant. 

VI. VI. COMPLIANCE TESTINGCOMPLIANCE TESTING 

23. 23. The The United States may take steps to monitor Defendants' compliance with this ConsentUnited States may take steps to monitor Defendants' compliance with this Consent 

Decree Decree including, but not limited to, conducting fair housing tests at any location(s) inincluding, but not limited to, conducting fair housing tests at any location(s) in 

which which the Defendants or their employees or agents conduct rental activities.the Defendants or their employees or agents conduct rental activities. 

VII. VII. COMPENSATION OF AGGRIEVED PERSONSCOMPENSATION OF AGGRIEVED PERSONS 

($280,000.00) 24. 24. Defendants Defendants shall pay a total of two hundred eighty thousand dollars shall pay a total of two hundred eighty thousand dollars ($280,000.00) in in

monetary monetary damages, costs and attorney's fees to the private Plaintiffs. Payment shall bedamages, costs and attorney's fees to the private Plaintiffs. Payment shall be 

made made in the form of a check made payable to the Attorney-Client Trust Account ofin the form of a check made payable to the Attorney-Client Trust Account of 

Brancart Brancart & Brancart. Within forty-five & Brancart. Within forty-five (45) (45) days days of the entry of this Consent Decree,of the entry of this Consent Decree, 

Defendants Defendants shall deliver, via overnight courier, the settlement check to Brancart &shall deliver, via overnight courier, the settlement check to Brancart & 

Brancart, Brancart, 8205 Pescadero Road, Loma Mar, CA 94021. Plaintiffs shall execute and8205 Pescadero Road, Lorna Mar, CA 94021. Plaintiffs shall execute and 

deliver deliver a mutual release to counsel for Defendants before any funds are disbursed. Asa mutual release to counsel for Defendants before any funds are disbursed. As 

part of this release, Plaintiff Teresa Odums will dismiss and release all claims arisingpart of this release, Plaintiff Teresa Odums will dismiss and release all claims arising 

from from any dispossessory action pending against Defendants.any dispossessory action pending against Defendants. 

25. 25. Defendants Defendants shall pay a total of three hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($350,000.00) inshall pay a total of three hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($350,000.00) in 

monetary monetary damages to persons whom the United States has identified as aggrieveddamages to persons whom the United States has identified as aggrieved 

persons. A list of such persons (hereinafter "identified aggrieved persons") specifying thepersons. A list of such persons (hereinafter "identified aggrieved persons") specifying the 

amount amount to be paid to each person is attached as Appendix D. Within forty-five to be paid to each person is attached as Appendix D. Within forty-five (45) (45) days days

of of the entry of this Consent Decree, Defendants shall send via overnight courier tothe entry of this Consent Decree, Defendants shall send via overnight courier to 
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counsel for the United States checks made payable to each such person, in the amountscounsel for the United States checks made payable to each such person, in the amounts 

listed in Appendix D. When counsel for the United States has received a check fromlisted in Appendix D. When counsel for the United States has received a check from 

Defendants payable to an aggrieved person and a signed release in the form of AppendixDefendants payable to an aggrieved person and a signed release in the form of Appendix 

C, counsel for the United States shall deliver the check to the aggrieved person and theC, counsel for the United States shall deliver the check to the aggrieved person and the 

original, signed release to counsel for Defendants. No aggrieved person shall be paidoriginal, signed release to counsel for Defendants. No aggrieved person shall be paid 

until he/she has executed and delivered to counsel for the United States the release atuntil he/she has executed and delivered to counsel for the United States the release at 

Appendix C.Appendix C. 

26.26. Defendants shall not seek to discharge any part of the compensation provided for inDefendants shall not seek to discharge any part of the compensation provided for in 

Section VII in bankruptcy.Section VII in bankruptcy. 

VIII. CIVIL PENALTYVIII. CIVIL PENALTY 

27.27. Within forty-five Within forty-five (45) (45) days after the entry of this Consent Decree, Defendants shall makedays after the entry of this Consent Decree, Defendants shall make 

a payment of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) to the United States as a civil penalty,a payment of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) to the United States as a civil penalty, 

pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3614(d)(1)(C). This payment shall be delivered to counsel forpursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3614(d)(l)(C). This payment shall be delivered to counsel for 

the the United States in the form of a cashier's check payable to the 'United States Treasury."United States in the form of a cashier's check payable to the "United States Treasury." 

28. 28. Defendants Defendants shall not seek to discharge any part of this civil penalty in bankruptcy.shall not seek to discharge any part of this civil penalty in bankruptcy. 

IX. IX. ACQUISITION OR TRANSFER OF INTEREST IN RENTAL PROPERTIESACQUISITION OR TRANSFER OF INTEREST IN RENTAL PROPERTIES 

29. 29. If If at any time while this Decree remains in effect, any Defendant decides to sell orat any time while this Decree remains in effect, any Defendant decides to sell or 

otherwise otherwise transfer the entirety of its interest in a subject property to an unrelated party intransfer the entirety of its interest in a subject property to an unrelated party in 

an an arms-length transaction,arms-length transaction,2 2 the Defendant shall take the following steps:the Defendant shall take the following steps: 

a. a. At At least thirty (30) days prior to completion of the sale or transfer, provide eachleast thirty (30) days prior to completion of the sale or transfer, provide each 

2 2 For For purposes of this Decree, "arms-length transaction" is defined as a transaction that has beenpurposes of this Decree, '"arms-length transaction" is defined as a transaction that has been 
arrived arrived at in the marketplace between independent, non-affiliated persons, unrelated by blood orat in the marketplace between independent, non-affiliated persons, unrelated by blood or 
marriage, marriage, with opposing economic interests regarding that transaction.with opposing economic interests regarding that transaction. 
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prospective purchaser or other transferee a copy of this Consent Decree alongprospective purchaser or other transferee a copy of this Consent Decree along 

with with written notice that the subject property remains subject to Sections 11-VI andwritten notice that the subject property remains subject to Sections II-VI and 

X-XIII X-XIH of the Decree;of the Decree; 

b.b. At least thirty (30) days prior to completion of the sale or transfer, provide theAt least thirty (30) days prior to completion ofthe sale or transfer, provide the 

United United States written notice of the Defendant's intent to sell or otherwise transferStates written notice of the Defendant's intent to sell or otherwise transfer 

interest interest in the property, along with a copy of the notice sent to each prospectivein the property, along with a copy ofthe notice sent to each prospective 

purchaser or transferee, containing the latter's name, address and telephonepurchaser or transferee, containing the latter's name, address and telephone 

number; number;

c. C. Within Within thirty (30) days following completion of the sale or other transfer, thethirty (30) days following completion of the sale or other transfer, the 

Defendant Defendant shall provide the United States a copy of the documents memorializingshall provide the United States a copy of the documents memorializing 

the the transfer in interest of the property; andtransfer in interest of the property; and 

d. d. The The Defendant shall require the transferee, as a condition of the sale or otherDefendant shall require the transferee, as a condition ofthe sale or other 

transfer, transfer, to agree in writing to perform all obligations and be liable forto agree in writing to perform all obligations and be liable for 

compliance compliance with Sections II-VI and X-Xll of this Consent Decree for thewith Sections II-VI and X-XII of this Consent Decree for the 

duration duration of the Decree, with respect to the property.of the Decree, with respect to the property. 

30. 30. If If the Defendant complies with Paragraph 29a-d and transfers all ownership,the Defendant complies with Paragraph 29a-d, and transfers all ownership, 

management, or other financial interest in the subject property to an arms-lengthmanagement, or other financial interest in the subject property to an arms-length 

purchaser or other transferee, and if the Defendant has no ownership, management, orpurchaser or other transferee, and if the Defendant has no ownership, management, Of 

other other financial interest in any other residential rental property, then the Defendant shallfinancial interest in any other residential rental property, then the Defendant shall 

thereafter thereafter be relieved of obligations under this Consent Decree with regard to the Subjectbe relieved of obligations under this Consent Decree with regard to the Subject 

Properties. Properties. Transfer of interest in the Subject Properties does not relieve any DefendantTransfer of interest in the Subject Properties does not relieve any Defendant 

of of obligations under Sections II, VII, and VIII of this Decree.obligations under Sections II, VII, and VIII of this Decree. 
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31. 31. If If the proposed transfer of interest is not an arms-length transaction, the Defendant mustthe proposed transfer of interest is not an arms-length transaction, the Defendant must 

comply comply with the requirements of Paragraph 29a-d. In addition, the Defendant shallwith the requirements of Paragraph 29a-d. In addition, the Defendant shall 

remain jointly and severally liable, along with the purchaser or other transferee, for anyremain jointly and severally liable, along with the purchaser or other transferee, for any 

violations of Sections 11-VI and X-XII of this Decree for its duration.violations of Sections II-VI and X-XII ofthis Decree for its duration. 

32. 32. If If at any time while this Decree remains in effect, any Defendant decides to acquire anat any time while this Decree remains in effect, any Defendant decides to acquire an 

ownership, ownership, management, or other financial interest in any other residential rentalmanagement, or other financial interest in any other residential rental 

property, either in whole or in part, the Defendant shall notify the United States in writingproperty, either in whole or in part, the Defendant shall notify the United States in writing 

at at least thirty (30) days before completion of the transaction, providing the name andleast thirty (30) days before completion of the transaction, providing the name and 

address address of the property and the identity of the manager(s) of the property, and thatof the property and the identity of the manager(s) of the property, and that 

property shall be subject to the provisions of this Decree for its duration. In addition,property shall be subject to the provisions of this Decree for its duration. In addition, 

within within thirty thirty (30) (30) days days following completion of the purchase. the Defendant shall providefollowing completion of the purchase, the Defendant shall provide 

the the United States (a) a statement specifying the nature of the Defendant's interest in theUnited States (a) a statement specifying the nature of the Defendant's interest in the 

property and a copy of the documents memorializing the acquisition of that interest; (b)property and a copy of the documents memorializing the acquisition of that interest; (b) 

the the number of individual dwelling units at the property; (c) the names of any existingnumber of individual dwelling units at the property; (c) the names of any existing 

tenants; tenants; and (d) the race and sex of each such tenant, based on the good faith observationand (d) the race and sex of each such tenant, based on the good faith observation 

of of the Defendant or the Defendant's employee or agent.the Defendant or the Defendant's employee or agent. 

x. X. SCOPE AND DURATION OF CONSENT DECREESCOPE AND DURATION OF CONSENT DECREE 

33. 33. The The provisions of this Consent Decree shall apply to all of Defendants' officers, agents,provisions of this Consent Decree shall apply to all of Defendants' officers, agents, 

employees, employees, successors and assigns, and all persons acting in active concert orsuccessors and assigns, and all persons acting in active concert or 

participation with them.participation with them. 

34. 34. This This Consent Decree shall remain in effect for four (4) years after the date of its entry.Consent Decree shall remain in effect for four (4) years after the date of its entry. 

35. 35. The The Court shall retain jurisdiction for the duration of this Consent Decree to enforce itsCourt shall retain jurisdiction for the duration of this Consent Decree to enforce its 
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terms, terms, after which time the case shall be dismissed with prejudice.after which time the case shall be dismissed with prejudice. 

36. 36. The The Parties shall endeavor in good faith to resolve informally any differences regardingParties shall endeavor in good faith to resolve informally any differences regarding 

interpretation interpretation of and compliance with this Consent Decree prior to bringing such mattersof and compliance with this Consent Decree prior to bringing such matters 

to to the Court for resolution.the Court for resolution. 

XI. XI. TIME FOR PERFORMANCETIME FOR PERFORMANCE 

37. 37. Any Any time limits for performance imposed by this Decree may be extended by mutualtime limits for performance imposed by this Decree may be extended by mutual 

written written agreement of the parties. The other provisions of this Decree maybe modified byagreement of the parties. The other provisions of this Decree may be modified by 

written written agreement of the parties or by motion to the Court. If the modification is byagreement of the parties or by motion to the Court. If the modification is by 

written written agreement of the parties, then such modification will be effective upon filing ofagreement of the parties, then such modification will be effective upon filing of 

the the written agreement with the Court, and shall remain in effect for the duration of thewritten agreement with the Court, and shall remain in effect for the duration of the 

Decree Decree or until such time as the Court indicates through written order that it has notor until such time as the Court indicates through written order that it has not 

approved approved the modification.the modification. 

XII. XII. MISCELLANEOUSMISCELLANEOUS 

38. 38. From From the execution of this Consent Decree and during the period in which this Consentthe execution of this Consent Decree and during the period in which this Consent 

Decree Decree is in effect, Defendants shall preserve all records that are the source of, contain, oris in effect, Defendants shall preserve all records that are the source of, contain, or 

relate relate to any of the information pertinent to their obligations under this Decree, including,to any of the information pertinent to their obligations under this Decree, including, 

but not limited to, all guest cards, availability lists, waiting lists, rental applications,but not limited to, all guest cards, availability lists, waiting lists, rental applications, 

leases, leases, rental roll ledgers, and occupancy lists. Upon reasonable notice to counsel forrental roll ledgers, and occupancy lists. Upon reasonable notice to counsel for 

Defendants, Defendants, representatives of the United States shall be permitted to inspect and copy allrepresentatives of the United States shall be permitted to inspect and copy all 

such such records at any and all reasonable times or, upon request by the United States,records at any and all reasonable times or, upon request by the United States, 

Defendants Defendants shall provide copies of such documents.shall provide copies of such documents. 

39. 39. The The parties will bear their own costs and attorneys' fees associated with this litigation.parties will bear their own costs and attorneys' fees associated with this litigation. 
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IT IT IS SO ORDERED IS SO ORDERED this this 1::>2.;1~ay o/f "-------,--::O~.l<:.....L:~-~' O1O.

_- JUfl+E A'RANDAL
STATES DISTRICT COURT
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By By their signatures below, the parties consent to the entry of this Decree:their signatures below, the parties consent to the entry of this Decree: 

Dated: Dated: JunJune...Z£ 2010 2010

For For the United States:the United States: 

EDWARDJ. EDWARD J. TARVERTARVER 
United United States AttorneyStates Attorney 
Southern Southern District of GeorgiaDistrict of Georgia 

DELORA DELORA KENNEBREWKENNEBREW 
Assistant Assistant United States AttorneyUnited States Attorney 
P.O. P.O. Box 8970Box 8970 
Savannah, Savannah, GA 31412GA 31412 
Tel: Tel: (912) 652-4422(912) 652-4422 
Fax: Fax: (912) (912) 652-4388652-4388 
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Respectfully Respectfully submitted,submitted, 

THOMAS THOMAS E. PEREZE. PEREZ 
Assistant Assistant Attorney GeneralAttorney General 
Civil Civil Rights DivisionRights Division 

bzii^-ui ^4'.A

STEVEH. ROSE1BAUMs~~~iirlGM 
Chief Chief
MICHAEL MICHAEL S. MAURERS. MAURER 
Deputy Deputy ChiefChief 
KATE KATE S. ELENGOLDS. ELENGOLD 
M. M. ELIZABETH PARRELIZABETH PARR 
Trial Trial AttorneysAttorneys 
Housing Housing and Civil Enforcement Sectionand Civil Enforcement Section 
Civil Civil Rights DivisionRights Division 
United United States Department of JusticeStates Department of Justice 
950 950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Northwestern Building, 7th FloorNorthwestern Building, 7th Floor 
Washington, Washington, DC 20530DC 20530 
Tel: Tel: (202) 514-4713(202) 514-4713 
Fax: Fax: (202) 514-1116(202) 514-1116 
kate kate .e1engoldusdoi .gov.elengo Id@usdoi.gov 
elizabeth.parr@usdoj.gov elizabeth.parr(2usdoj . gov
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For For Plaintiffs Savannah-Chatham County Fair Housing Council, Jerald Williams, AmandaPlaintiffs Savannah-Chatham County Fair Housing Council, Jerald Williams, Amanda 
Williams Williams and Teresa Odums:and Teresa Odums: 

CHRIS TOPHR BRANCART
Brancart Brancart & Brkncart& Br ncart 
P.O. P.O. Box 686'Box 686 
Pescadero, Pescadero, CA 94060CA 94060 
(650) (650) 879-0141 879-0141
cbrancart@brancart.com cbrancart(rancart. corn



Case 4:07-cv-00125-JRH-GRS  Document 79   Filed 06/23/10  Page 21 of 25 

For For Defendants Darwin K. Morgan and D.K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC:Defendants Darwin K. Morgan and D.K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC: 

R.-BRANDON MALLOW
Galloway Galloway & Galloway, P/& Galloway, P 
P.O. P.O. Box 674Box 674 
Pooler, Pooler, GA 31322GA 31322 
(912) (912) 748-9100748-9100 
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Appendix Appendix A A

NONDISCRIMINATION NONDISCRIMINATION POLICYPOLICY 

It It is the policy of D. K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC to comply with Title VIII of the Civilis the policy ofD. K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC to comply with Title VIII ofthe Civil 
Rights Rights Act of 1968, as amended, commonly known as the Fair Housing Act, by ensuring thatAct of 1968, as amended, commonly known as the Fair Housing Act, by ensuring that 
apartments apartments are available to all persons without regard to race, color, religion, national origin,are available to all persons without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, 
disability, disability, familial status (having children under age 18), or sex. This policy means that, amongfamilial status (having children under age 18), or sex. This policy means that, among 
other other things, D.K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC and Darwin K. Morgan and all their agents andthings, D.K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC and Darwin K. Morgan and all their agents and 
employees employees with the responsibility for renting, managing, or administering any dwelling unitswith the responsibility for renting, managing, or administering any dwelling units 
must not discriminate in any aspect of the rental of dwellings against applicants or tenantsmust not discriminate in any aspect of the rental of dwellings against applicants or tenants 
because of race or color or familial status. Similarly, they shall not engage in any illegal sexualbecause of race or color or familial status. Similarly, they shall not engage in any illegal sexual 
harassment harassment of tenants or potential tenants. Such agents and employees may not:of tenants or potential tenants. Such agents and employees may not: 

A. A. Refuse Refuse to rent, refuse to negotiate for the rental of, or otherwise make unavailableto rent, refuse to negotiate for the rental of, or otherwise make unavailable 
or or deny, a dwelling to any person because of race, color, religion, national origin,deny, a dwelling to any person because of race, color, religion, national origin, 
disability, disability, familial status, or sex;familial status, or sex; 

B. B. Discriminate Discriminate against any person in the terms, conditions or privileges of rental ofagainst any person in the terms, conditions or privileges of rental of 
a a dwelling, or in the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith,dwelling, or in the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, 
because of race, color, religion, national origin, disability, familial status, or sex;because ofrace, color, religion, national origin, disability, familial status, or sex; 

C. C. Make, Make, print, or publish, or cause to be made, printed, or published any notice,print, or publish, or cause to be made, printed, or published any notice, 
statement, statement, or advertisement, with respect to the rental of a dwelling that indicatesor advertisement, with respect to the rental of a dwelling that indicates 
any any preference, limitation, or discrimination based on race, color, religion,preference, limitation, or discrimination based on race, color, religion, 
national origin, disability, familial status, or sex;national origin, disability, familial status, or sex; 

D. D. Represent Represent to persons because of race, color, religion, national origin, disability,to persons because ofrace, color, religion, national origin, disability, 
familial familial status, or sex that any dwelling is not available for inspection or rentalstatus, or sex that any dwelling is not available for inspection or rental 
when when such dwelling is in fact so available; orsuch dwelling is in fact so available; or 

E. E. Coerce, Coerce, intimidate, threaten, or interfere with persons in the exercise or enjoymentintimidate, threaten, or interfere with persons in the exercise or enjoyment 
of, of, or on account of their having exercised or enjoyed, their rights under the Fairor on account of their having exercised or enjoyed, their rights under the Fair 
Housing Housing Act.Act. 

Any Any agent or employee who fails to comply with this Nondiscrimination Policy will be subject toagent or employee who fails to comply with this Nondiscrimination Policy will be subject to 
appropriate appropriate disciplinary action. Any action taken by an agent or employee that results in unequaldisciplinary action. Any action taken by an agent or employee that results in unequal 
service service to, treatment of, or behavior toward tenants or actual or potential applicants on the basisto, treatment of, or behavior toward tenants or actual or potential applicants on the basis 
of of race, color, religion, national origin, disability, familial status, or sex may constitute arace, color, religion, national origin, disability, familial status, or sex may constitute a 
violation violation of state and federal fair housing laws. Any tenant or applicant who believes that any ofof state and federal fair housing laws. Any tenant or applicant who believes that any of 
the the above policies have been violated by any owner, agent, or employee should file a writtenabove policies have been violated by any owner, agent, or employee should file a written 
complaint complaint with the Manager(s) at Morgan Mobile Home Parks. The Manager(s) shallwith the Manager(s) at Morgan Mobile Home Parks. The Manager(s) shall 
immediately immediately investigate the complaint and take the necessary remedial actions. An individualinvestigate the complaint and take the necessary remedial actions. An individual 
who who believes that he or she is the victim of discrimination may also contact the U.S. Departmentbelieves that he or she is the victim of discrimination may also contact the U.S. Department 
of of Housing and Urban Development at 1-800-440-8091 x 2493, or the U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development at 1-800-440-8091 x 2493, or the U.S. Department of 
Justice Justice at 1-800-896-7743 xl or 202-514-4713.at 1-800-896-7743 xl or 202-514-4713. 
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AppendixB Appendix B

EMPLOYEE EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGMENTACKNOWLEDGMENT 

I I acknowledge that onacknowledge that on ___________ , 201_, 201_, I was provided copies of theI was provided copies of the 

Consent Consent Decree entered by the Court in United States, et at v. Moraan, et al., Civil ActionDecree entered by the Court in United States, et a1 v. Morgan. et aI., Civil Action 

No,4:07-cv-125 (S.D. Ga.), and the Nondiscrimination Policy of D.K. Morgan Consolidated,No.4:07-cv-125 (S.D. Ga.), and the Nondiscrimination Policy ofD.K. Morgan Consolidated, 

LLC. LLC. I have read and understand these documents and have had my questions about theseI have read and understand these documents and have had my questions about these 

documents documents answered. I understand my legal responsibilities and shall comply with thoseanswered. I understand my legal responsibilities and shall comply with those 

responsibilities. responsibilities.

Signature Signature

Print Print NameName 

Job Job TitleTitle 

Home Home AddressAddress 

Home Home Address ContinuedAddress Continued 

Home Home Telephone NumberTelephone Number 

Date Date
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Appendix CAppendix C 

FULL AND FINAL RELEASE OF CLAIMSFULL AND FINAL RELEASE OF CLAIMS 

In consideration for the parties' agreement to the terms of the Consent Decree theyIn consideration for the parties' agreement to the terms of the Consent Decree they 
entered into in the case of United States, et al v. Morgan, et al., as approved by the United Statesentered into in the case of United States, et al v. Morgan, et al., as approved by the United States 
District Court for the Southern District of Georgia, and in consideration for the payment of $District Court for the Southern District of Georgia, and in consideration for the payment of $ 
, I, ____________________________________________, do hereby fully release and forever dischargeI, , do hereby fully release and forever discharge 
D.K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC and Darwin K. Morgan (hereinafter "Defendants"), along withD.K. Morgan Consolidated, LLC and Darwin K. Morgan (hereinafter "Defendants"), along with 
their insurers, attorneys, related companies, principals, predecessors, successors, assigns,their insurers, attorneys, related companies, principals, predecessors, successors, assigns, 
affiliates, partners, directors, officers, agents, employers, shareholders, subsidiaries, employees,affiliates, partners, directors, officers, agents, employers, shareholders, subsidiaries, employees, 
former employees, heirs, executors, and administrators and any persons acting under theirformer employees, heirs, executors, and administrators and any persons acting under their 
respective direction or control from any and all claims set forth, or which could have been setrespective direction or control from any and all claims set forth, or which could have been set 
forth, in the Complaint in this lawsuit that I may have had against any of them for any offorth, in the Complaint in this lawsuit that I may have had against any of them for any of 
Defendants' actions or statements related to those claims through the date of the entry of theDefendants' actions or statements related to those claims through the date of the entry of the 
Consent Decree.Consent Decree. 

Executed this Executed this __ day ofday of ________ ,2010., 2010. 

SignatureSignature 

Print Print NameName 

Home Home AddressAddress 

Home Home Address ContinuedAddress Continued 

--24-24-
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Appendix Appendix 0D 

Identified Identified Aggrieved PersonAggrieved Person AmountAmount 

Shirley Shirley CollinsCollins $50,000 $50,000

Wanda Wanda FurlongFurlong $50,000 $50,000

Dawn Dawn GrimmerGrimmer $50,000 $50,000

Carolyn Carolyn JonesJones $20,000 $20.000

Maxie Maxie OrtnorOrtnor $25,000 $25,000

Dorothy Dorothy RichardsonRichardson $20,000 $20,000

Swinton Swinton RichardsonRichardson $20,000 $20,000

Janalee Janalee Smith SawyerSmith Sawyer $50,000 $50,000

Marilyn Marilyn SpikesSpikes $25,000 $25,000

Misty Misty SummersSummers $20,000 $20,000

Tony Tony WilliamsWilliams $20,000 $20,000
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